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BASIC DETAILS 

 
Built: late       11th century 
 
For:        William de Merlay 
 
Gatehouse added:     c1350 
 
Remodelled:      late 1600s 
 
Repaired by      the Earl of Carlisle: 1860 
 
Acquired by the Landmark Trust:  1988 
 
Form of tenure:     Leasehold 
 
Architects:      Stewart Tod & Partners 
 
Builders:       Bowden & Co., Newcastle 
 
Furnished and let:     October 1991 
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Summary 
 
The building now known as Morpeth Castle was originally a gatehouse, added in 
about 1350 at the entrance to the castle proper. It probably replaced an earlier 
gatehouse which had been there for a hundred years or more. There has, in fact, 
been a castle in Morpeth since the Norman period. The first one stood to the 
North of the present site, on Ha' Hill, but was destroyed by King John in 1216. 
The second, where you are now, was built soon afterwards, still in the 13th 
century. The castle had a stone keep, or great tower, in the centre of a courtyard 
or bailey, protected by the existing curtain wall. This keep is shown on the 
earliest map of Morpeth, dated 1604 and it would have dwarfed the gatehouse. 
 
In 1271 Morpeth passed from its first owners, the de Merlays, to the Greystoke 
family. They had other castles, and Morpeth Castle seems to have become a 
centre of administration, in local government and the law, only visited 
occasionally by its owner. It would have been under the control of a Constable, 
living there with his household, and a small garrison. There was, no doubt, a 
Steward or Bailiff as well, with a clerk, to oversee the management of Lord 
Greystoke's property in the area.  
 
It is possible that the lodging for one or these important officials was on the 
upper floor of the imposing new gatehouse, built by William Lord Greystoke, the 
Good Baron, between 1342 and 1359. On the first floor, however, there was just 
one large chamber, but with two doorways and, possibly, a free-standing screen 
in the position of the present partition. This unusual arrangement suggests that it 
was a Courtroom, in which justice was dispensed. The gatehouse is strangely 
lacking in defensive features, such as a portcullis, and this also suggests that the 
building was intended mainly for ceremony and show, rather than military 
strength.  
 
In the early 1500s the castle was, for a short period, occupied by its owner, now 
the Lord Dacre. Here in 1515-16 he entertained Margaret, sister to Henry VIII and 
widowed Queen of Scotland, one of many Royal visitors to Morpeth over the 
centuries. His house was adorned with tapestries and there were vessels of silver 
to eat from. By the end of the century, however, the castle was described as 
"mightily decayed".  
 
The one great military event in the history of the castle was yet to come. Border 
raids had been an ongoing occupational hazard, but there is no record of the 
castle ever having been involved in serious warfare until 1644, and the Civil War. 
Then, in spite of grave doubts as to its strength, a Parliamentary garrison of 500 
held the castle for 20 days against Montrose's Royalist force of 2,700. When the 
Parliamentarians finally marched out, in full honour, it was discovered that they 
had only lost 23 men, as against 191 men of the besieging force.  
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By this time Morpeth belonged to the Howard family, who became Earls of 
Carlisle. For the next two hundred years the castle was largely abandoned, 
providing a useful source of building stone. The gatehouse, however, was lived 
in, and seems to have been partly remodelled in the late 1600s when an attic 
floor was inserted. Early 19th-century engravings show it becoming more and 
more dilapidated. Then, about 1860, the Earl of Carlisle repaired the gatehouse, 
as a house for his agent. The parapet was rebuilt and new windows were 
inserted. Inside, there were new partitions and stairs.  
 
The gatehouse resumed its position as an important building in Morpeth until its 
sale in 1916. In 1946 it was bought by the Borough Council and became for a 
while a very unusual council house. By the 1980s, expensive repairs were 
needed, particularly to the roof. The gatehouse fell vacant, and quickly became 
derelict. A new solution for its future was urgently sought by the Borough 
Council. In 1988 the Council granted a lease to the Landmark Trust. The 
restoration of Morpeth Castle as it had come to be known, was completed in the 
autumn of 1991. 
 
 
A Tour of Morpeth Castle and Details of its Restoration 
 
In the restoration of Morpeth Castle, the Landmark Trust set out to recover a little 
of the tower's medieval layout, but also to retain something of the later dwellings 
that were made within it in the 17th century and especially in 1860. The long 
history of the building is therefore visible, perhaps for the first time.  
 
Outside the tower  
The tall windows, the corbelled parapet and the corner turrets, which make up 
the front of the tower, all date from the Victorian rebuilding, but its appearance in 
the Middle Ages was not much different. The design of the windows has 
changed, but they occupied roughly the same positions as now. Passing through 
the stone arch, the rooms on either side were the guardrooms, watching over the 
entrance to the castle. Once inside the gate, there are stables and outbuildings on 
your right. These probably date from 1860.  
 
The entrance  
The ground level inside the castle has risen over the centuries, so that it now 
slopes up inside the gate, almost to the level of the main door to the upper floors 
of the castle. This was probably reached originally by steps at the side of the 
building. The door surround itself is Victorian, but it is in the same place as the 
medieval entrance. The Landmark Trust removed a single storey extension added 
on this side of the tower in about 1916.  
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Inside the tower - first floor  
Opening off a passage to the right are two doors, of which the second, although 
much altered, was originally the grander. When this floor was used as a 
courtroom, the first door was for the prisoners and guards; the second for the 
justices. A free-standing screen in the position of the present partition probably 
divided the room, so that the sitting room, in the larger end, is much as it was in 
the Middle Ages. Ahead of you when you enter this room is a cupboard, or 
aumbrey, in which the seals and paraphernalia of justice would have been 
displayed.  
 
Both ends of the room had fireplaces. That in the sitting room, however, has 
been much hacked about in recent years and has lost its original mouldings. Also 
at both ends are garderobes, or privies.  The walls have been re-plastered and 
limewashed, and nearly all the joinery is new, including the oak-boarded ceiling.  
 
The second floor   
The decision to reinstate the original newel staircase caused a minor problem 
because either in the 17th century or in 1860, the level of the second floor had 
been lowered by about two feet. Landmark decided to keep to the existing, 
lower, floor level, so some steps had to be built to bridge the gap between it and 
the threshold of the medieval door. Under the threshold two 19th-century shoes 
were discovered.  
 
The second floor was probably always divided into two or more rooms. The 
present arrangement of the partitions is almost entirely new, however, as are the 
floorboards. There is another garderobe in the corner of the large bedroom, like 
those on the floor below. In the bathroom the window sill contains a stone sink, 
or slop-stone, showing that this floor was always domestic. It possibly formed a 
self-contained apartment or lodging for one of the castle officials.  
 
The roof  
The Landmark Trust put back local stone slates of the kind that would have 
covered the roof originally. They came from Ladycross Quarry near Allendale, 
south west of Hexham. The lead was also renewed and the wall-walk itself paved 
with York stone slabs.  
 
The restoration of Morpeth Castle was carried out under the supervision of the 
Edinburgh architects, Stewart Tod and Partners. The builders were Bowden & Co 
of Newcastle-upon- Tyne. Archaeological investigations, and the recording of the 
castle's structural history, were carried out by Peter F. Ryder, of Riding Mill. 
These were funded by English Heritage, which also gave a grant towards the cost 
of the repairs.  
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Morpeth Castle in 1784 
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History of Morpeth Castle 
 
When the border wars were at their height, during the reign of Henry VIII, 

Morpeth Castle was at the hub of events.  It was the seat of the Wardens of the 

Marches, its role a combination of palace, court of law and prison.  Henry VIII's 

sister Margaret sought refuge there from the Scots and for one winter Morpeth 

Castle was an address well known in the courts of England and of France.  The 

second time it played a small part in our national history was  when, in 1644, it 

was beleaguered by Montrose during the Civil Wars and became  one of the last 

castles in England to fall by siege.   

 

Both these events came late in its history.  The first Morpeth Castle was built by 

the De Merlay family soon after the conquest and was probably made of wood.  

It is mentioned in 1135 as a 'strong castle which stood on a hill above 

Wansbeck', and was taken by William II in 1095, when the De Merlays, with 

other northern lords, rose against him.  It stood on Ha' Hill, the little hill  to the 

north of the Castle Gatehouse, that you can see very well looking out of  the 

window in the main, north bedroom on the second floor.   

 

At some stage, perhaps after it had been burnt by King John in 1216, when he 

was quelling another rebellion in the north, the Castle was built, or rebuilt, on the 

present site, in stone, a square fortress with two baileys.  The only picture we 

have of this building is the tiny drawing in the map of 1604, in which the 

Gatehouse also appears, looking very small compared with the main keep.   
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Map of 1604 showing central keep and gatehouse 
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The Gatehouse was built in about 1350 by William Greystock, a predecessor of 

whom having married the De Merlay heiress.  It is not a particularly strong 

building from the military point of view and it seems likely that, the Greystocks 

often being appointed Wardens of the Border Marches, the Gatehouse was built 

from the beginning as a courtroom, where the Warden could deal out rough 

justice and keep the peace between the reivers, or cattle thieves, both Scots and 

English.  Another Landmark gatehouse, Cawood, near York, was also used as a 

courtroom: it was quite a common combination.   

 

In 1506 the Greystock heiress, Elizabeth, married into another family of Border 

grandees, the Dacres.  Thomas Dacre, known as Lord Dacre of the North, was no 

backwoods peer; he was Henry VIII's envoy to the Scottish court, as  well as 

Warden of the Marches, and was in constant correspondence with Cardinal  

Wolsey.  He fought at the battle of Flodden, about twenty miles north of 

Morpeth, in 1513, and it was he who, after the battle, identified the body of 

James IV of Scotland, killed in the fighting.   

 

Two years later, James IV's widow, Queen Margaret, took refuge with Lord 

Dacre in Morpeth Castle.  As mother of the baby King, James V, she had been 

made Regent, but with England once again the enemy, she was, as sister of 

Henry VIII, in a difficult position.  When she rashly married the young Lord Angus, 

she was deposed as Regent and the Duke of Albany, a Frenchman, was 

appointed instead. Her position in Scotland became more and more dangerous 

and, when she  ran out of money, impossible.  She fled, leaving her two sons 

behind, but her flight was complicated by being pregnant and she was also 

suffering from what was probably an arthritic hip.  Her first stop over the border 

was Harbottle Castle near Coldstream, where she gave birth to a baby daughter.  

In November 1515 she and the baby arrived at Morpeth Castle.  Though no 

longer Regent, as mother of James V, Margaret was still an important piece in 

the diplomatic power game that was being played between England and France, 

with Scotland as pawn.  The Duke of Albany wrote to her constantly and her  
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Margaret Tudor as a young woman by Daniel 
Mytens 
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Scottish supporters came down in droves.  Lord Dacre complained about the 

expense, and said that Morpeth Castle was turned into an inn.   

 

Lord Dacre lived there in some style: the Castle was well furnished, hung with 

tapestries, the sideboard laden with gold and silver plate, and the food lavish with 

plenty of wildfowl from the Wansbeck Dacre wrote saying that Margaret refused 

culies (broth) morteis (meat hash), almond milk and pottages, food thought 

suitable for an invalid, and would only eat roast meat with jellies and that very 

scantily.  She seems to have been a demanding guest, but she was in great pain.  

Henry VIII confirmed his support for her by sending up to Morpeth a pack train 

bearing jewels, ermine, cloth of gold and silver, velvets and tinsell braid.  'Her 

Grace was borne in a chair out of her  bed-chamber into the great chamber, to 

the intent that her Grace would see all  such stuff as your highness had sent her' 

wrote Sir Christopher Garneys, King  Henry's envoy, staying with Lord Dacre.  

She had the cloth made into gowns and 'she will have them held before her twice 

a day to look at'.   

 

At last on 8 April 1516 Margaret left Morpeth for the court in London and the 

Castle reverted to its old role as a border fortress.   

 

In 1535 Morpeth Castle was broken into by thieves from the north Tyne, who 

rescued their kinsman, Coke Charlton, a renowned cattle thief who was 

imprisoned there.   

 

In 1569 the last of the Dacres was killed aged six, by a fall from his rocking 

horse, and the Morpeth estates went to Lord William Howard, who had married 

the little boy's sister, Elizabeth.  The Howards, later Earls of Carlisle, did not live 

at Morpeth, but at Naworth, another Dacre castle in Cumbria, and by 1640 

Morpeth Castle, apart from the Gatehouse, was in a ruinous state.   
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Margaret Tudor and the Earl of Angus (artist unknown).  From The 
Sisters of Henry VIII, by Hester W Chapman, Jonathan Cape, 1969, 

London Library 
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In 1644, at the beginning of the Civil War, General Leslie, commander of the 

Scottish troops supporting Parliament, marched south into England and left a 

company of 500 men, under Lieutenant Colonel Somerville, to garrison Morpeth 

Castle.  Somerville was loathe to defend it, saying it was 'a ruinous hole, not 

tenable by nature or art;’ however, he obeyed and held it for twenty days against 

2,700 royalist troops, led by the marquess of Montrose.  There is  fortunately a 

blow by blow account of the siege in The Memoirs of the Somervilles quoted, in 

slightly shortened form, in John Hodgson's History of Morpeth which is in the 

bookcase.  

 

As soon as he realised he would be attacked, Colonel Somerville dug a deep 

trench in front of the Gatehouse and filled the entrance with earth and sods so 

that the gate could not be blown up with petards.  He and his men withstood the 

first attacks, but when Montrose brought up canon capable of demolishing the 

castle from a barn nearby they were forced to capitulate.  The remains of the 

barn may perhaps be the wall with buttresses that can be seen to the south east 

of the Castle.  Towards the end of the battle it sounds as though the vaults of 

the Gatehouse were used for shelter.  Somerville surrendered with honour, having 

lost 23 men against Montrose's 191.   

 

After the siege the central keep was in ruins and by the time John Hodson wrote 

his History of Morpeth in 1832 there was nothing left of it at all: it had been used 

as a quarry by the town.  The Gatehouse, however, survived, and perhaps 

because the keep was no longer habitable, and a living place was needed, at the 

end of the seventeenth century, the windows were enlarged and it was made into 

a dwelling.  But then it seems to have been abandoned.  There is little change in 

the structure between the engraving of 1784 and the photograph taken about 

1860; in both it looks equally uninhabitable.   
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Photograph of about 1860 

Morpeth Castle from a painting by Luke Clennel (1812) 
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Sometime after the siege a cottage was built beside the Gatehouse, perched up 

against the curtain wall.  By 1812, the date of the next engraving, the cottage 

was disintegrating and by the 1860's it had fallen down and the curtain wall 

where it had been was repaired.    

 

About 1860, at the time of the great rebuild in Northumberland, when money 

from coal was pouring in, and landowners were renovating their old farm 

buildings and building new ones, the Earl of Carlisle restored the Castle 

Gatehouse as a house for his agent.  The stable wing was probably built at the 

same time.   

 

In 1916 the castle was sold to Mr. Charles Alderson, a solicitor, and  sometime 

after 1922 either he or his daughters, who inherited it, built on a  single storey 

extension to the south east, beyond the front door.  In 1946 it was bought by 

Morpeth Borough Council and let to Mr. and Mrs. Paul Shrubsole who stayed 

there till 1968.  They kept horses in the stables and used the paddock for 

grazing.  In 1972 Mr. Bell, a builder, took it on a long lease and made some more 

alterations.   

 

By the 1980s, expensive repairs were needed, particularly to the roof. The 

gatehouse fell vacant, and quickly became derelict. A new solution for its future 

was urgently sought by the Borough Council. In 1988 the Council granted a lease 

to the Landmark Trust. The restoration of Morpeth Castle as it had come to be 

known, was completed in the autumn of 1991. 
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1943 
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Internal elevation of south wall 
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The Building 

 

A detailed report on Morpeth Castle was made but the archaeologist and 

historian, Peter Ryder, in 1990, and published in Archaeologia Aeliana in 1992. A 

copy of this article is at the back of this album. The following is a brief resumé of 

past alterations, with a description of the Landmark Trust’s restoration. 

 

Late 17th-century alterations 

The two lower windows in the engraving of 1784 are still recognisable as 

medieval, even if slightly altered. The upper window had clearly been partly 

blocked, its sill lowered, and one or more casements fitted. This probably 

happened in the later 17th century when, some years after the siege, the 

gatehouse was made habitable. 

 

At the same time, a new attic floor was inserted, which cut across the head of 

the second floor window. Looking at the Castle Gatehouse from within the bailey, 

you can see the two small windows at the very top of the building below the 

parapet. These were discovered, blocked up, when the ivy was removed from 

that side. They look late 17th-century, and were presumably made to light the 

new attic. They are innocuous, but English Heritage was reluctant for them to be 

opened up because they are not medieval. A curious compromise was reached by 

which half of each window is open and half left blocked. 

 

Inside the building, a more radical alteration was the lowering of the second floor 

by more than 2ft, made necessary by the insertion of the attic. This meant that 

the medieval door from the newel stair was left way above floor level, but 

whether there were steps, as now, or whether an alternative staircase was  

made at this date, we don’t know. There was never a door from the newel stair 

into the attic, which may have been reached by a ladder stair. 
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Mid 19th-century alterations 

By comparing the earlier prints of the gatehouse, and the photograph of c1860, 

with the building as it is now, it is easy to see the principal changes. The Gothic 

windows were put in; the parapet, which had gone, was replaced, some of the 

corbels renewed and the embattled tops of the turrets or bartizans were rebuilt. 

On the south side, the main door was re-made. The gatehouse was reroofed in 

slate. 

 

Inside, the floors were entirely rebuilt, though probably at the existing, 17th- 

century levels, to provide three floors of accommodation. These were linked by a 

new staircase. That from the first to second floor was placed in the middle of the 

house, dividing each floor into two rooms of roughly equal size. A further stair led 

up to the attic. The door to the spiral stair was blocked up at second floor level, if 

it had not been earlier, so that it now only gave access to the roof. 

 

It is not quite clear when the stable block was added, but it appears on the sale 

notice in 1916, and Lord Carlisle’s agent would have need somewhere to keep 

his horse, so it was probably built when the gatehouse was restored. 
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Mid 20th-century Alterations 

To the south of the gatehouse, against the bailey wall, a single story extension 

was made in the 1920s-1930s, consisting of an entrance hall, kitchen, bathroom 

etc. The garderobe at the south, present kitchen end of the first floor was turned 

into a WC. These alterations can be seen on the plan made by the Borough 

Surveyor, probably when Morpeth Borough Council bought the castle in 1946. 

 

Sometime after the 1946 plan the garderobe at the sitting room end of the first 

floor was opened up, and a new door into it made by hacking through the wall to 

the left of the fireplace. The garderobe in the north end of the second floor was 

also opened up. 

 

The window at the north end of the west wall of the sitting room, which appears 

as a slit in the 1916 plan, was enlarged and an odd V-shaped window was put in. 

It appears in the 1987 photograph of the east side of the gatehouse. 

 

In 1968-70, Mr Bell carried out some repairs and modernised the services. He 

also added a swimming pool at the far end of the extension. 
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Borough Surveyors plan showing 1920s extension 
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Landmark Alterations 1989-91 

 

The Landmark Trust has kept much of the 19th-century restoration, most 

obviously the windows - but has at the same time returned the gatehouse to 

something more nearly like its old medieval lay out.  

 

External alterations 

 

The 20th-century extensions were poor buildings and were removed.   

 

The asphalt within the gateway was returned to cobbles and stone sets.   

 

The Gatehouse was re-roofed with stone slates from Ladycross Quarry near 

Allendale, south west of Hexham.  York paving was laid on the walkway round 

the roof and the lead was replaced.  

 

Internal alterations 

 

The stairs 

The central Victorian staircase was removed and the newel stair, which led only 

to the roof, was put back into commission.  The medieval doorway leading from 

the stairs to the second floor was reopened.  With the change of floor lever, the 

threshold of the spiral stairs at the second floor was 18" higher than the level of 

the actual floor.  Three steps now lead up to it.  It was here that two shoes were 

discovered built into the threshold.  Between the first and second floors the door 

leading our onto the walkway round the top of the curtain wall was replaced with 

a fixed door with a window, the curtain wall having crumbled, it lead out onto 

nothing.  A new staircase was put in between the second and attic floors against 

the south wall, and the old one, against the east wall was removed.  
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The first floor 

In medieval times, before the Victorian staircase was put in, the whole of the first 

floor seems to have been one room, divided by a screen, and the Landmark Trust 

has returned it to this plan.  The reason for thinking the first floor of the 

Gatehouse was a courtroom is the passage with its two doors: the first, smaller 

one, opening onto one side of the screen, for the prisoners and guards, the 

second, grander one, for those administering justice, opening onto the other.  

Both ends had a fire.  The aumbrey, or cupboard alcove, straight ahead of the 

main door would have held the seals and paraphernalia of justice.   

 

The fireplace at the north, sitting room, end of the room is original but has been 

badly hacked about and shorn of its mouldings.  The new opening that had been 

made into the garderobe to the left of the fireplace, has been built up and the 

original door to the garderobe, to the right of the west window, opened up.  The 

garderobe at the south, kitchen end of the room was entered by a door opposite 

you as you came into the room; the original door was discovered in the wall at 

right angles to the window, and was reopened, the new one, blocked.  The V 

shaped window at the north end of the west wall has been re-made into an 

ordinary mullion window.  The metal frames of the gothic Victorian windows had 

to be repaired or re-made.  

 

The second floor 

The partitions in this floor and the one above were altered, with the removal of 

the central staircase.  The bathroom was already where it is not, but was 

renewed.  

 

The attic floor 

The two small 17th-century windows were partially unblocked and repaired and 

the sky lights were renewed.   
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Plan of the castle in 1989 
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Internal elevation of east wall 
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Internal elevation of north wall 
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Internal elevation of west wall 
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The east side in 1986 

The west side in 1986 
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The archway showing the asphalt in the courtyard.  1986 

The stable buildings in 1986.  The washhouse in the centre has been removed. 
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The extension in 1986 
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The south side with extension in 1986 
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Detail of the extension in 1986 

The Hall in the extension and present front door 
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Opening made in 1960s into garderobe on north end of first floor, now built up. 

Shows cabinet in present bathroom and old stair (19th C) up to attic. 
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The 1960s staircase 
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Practising laying a cobble pattern 

Outside the stables showing original cobbles 
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Open day, summer 1990, with roof stripped 

The sets laid out before being put into position 
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Stone slates for the roof came from Ladycross Quarry near 
Allendale, Hexham. 
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The stone slates for the roof arriving in October 1990 

Fixing the last of the stone slates to the roof 
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The 17th century windows as they must have looked.  Here 
they are mock-ups made of cardboard.  

Finding the 17th-century windows 
in the attic. 
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The south extension being removed 
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First floor, kitchen end before restoration.  The door led into a wall in the 
garderobe. 

Kitchen end during restoration 
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Discovering the original garderobe in the kitchen, to the right 
of the window. 
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  Window onto the second floor passage.  The level of the original floor 
is shown by gaps in the stone work. 
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Opening the original doorway from the spiral stairs to the second 
floor, December 1990. 
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The spiral stair doorway completely open.  This is where the shoes 
were found hidden in the threshold. 
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  The last of the scaffolding coming down. 
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From Northampton Museum, Belt and Shoe Collection, March 1991: 

Shoe 1 (with the shoe lace) 

Man’s leather latchet tie shoe, possibly for military or court dress wear as shoes 
of this style in our collection testify (see illustration).  Latchets are extensions of 
the quarters (sides) which are fastened by either, buckles, ribbons or laces, in this 
case a silk lace has been used.   
 

The square toe style is indicative of the 1840's/1850's but the sole appears to be 
'straight' i.e. neither right nor left although this shoe has obviously been worn 
more on the right foot.   
 

There is a one-lift leather heel and the sole has been repaired (half-soled), both 
stitched and riveted: the rivets in the heel and the toe now rusted.   
 
I would guess that the shoe is a working or middle class 'Sunday best' because it 
has been well made and very well repaired.  It would not, I think, have belonged 
to a more wealthy person as the latchet tie with a square toe was beginning to 
be a thing of the past in the 1850's.  
 
Circa 1855 is a fairly accurate date for this shoe.  
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Shoe 2 
 
Man’s leather lace-up derby shoe.  Once again with a square toe, a two lift heel 
and a half-sole repair.  This shoe however is not a 'straight', it is almost certainly 
the left shoe.   
 
This shoe is more in keeping with traditional concealed shoe superstitions, i.e. it 
is badly worn.  I have already mentioned the half shoe repair (which incidentally, 
has been riveted) but there is also the worn down sole and heel and the hole in 
the vamp at the little toe joint.  This tells us that the shoes have been treasured 
by the wearer, either for their comfort or more likely because new shoes were too 
expensive.   
 

The general style and shape of this shoe suggests a date close to the other one, 
possibly c.1860. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  



                                                                       Morpeth Castle History Album 

52 
 

Works consulted on the history of Morpeth Castle:  

 

John Hodgson  History of Morpeth (1832)  

 

For Margaret Tudor's stay in the Castle:  

J.S.Brewer, Reign of Henry VIII (1884)  

Hester Chapman, Sisters of Henry VIII (1969)  

Patricia Buchanan, Margaret Tudor (1985)  

 

For the siege:  

James 11th Lord Somerville, Memorie of the Somervilles (1815)  

 

For the description of the building:  

Peter F.Ryder Morpeth Castle Gatehouse, Archaeological Survey and Report  

(June  1990).  

 

For the description of the Landmark Trust's restoration:  

Vivienne Tod of Stewart Tod and  

Partners gave essential information and advice.     

 

Clayre Percy   
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